HellerEhrman AL

May 9, 2006 Heller Ehrman (Hong Kong) Ltd.
Bk (Fw) R AT

Simon C.M, Luk
Simon.Luk@hellerehrman.com
Direct +852.2292.2222

Main +852.2292.2000

Fax +852.2292.2200

Securities and Exchange Commission
100 F Street, NE,

Washington, DC 20549

USA

Attention Filer Support

Mail Stop 1-4

Y &
S ®
SV RECEVED Sy
4 &
%

SEC FILE NO. 82-3850

Re: Galaxy Entertainment Group Limited
(formerly known as K. Wah Construction Materials Limited) D
Information Furnished Pursuant to Rule 12g3-2(b) PROCESSE
under the Securities Exchange Act MAY 172006

Ladies and Gentlemen: /ﬁ&%ﬂ%&%

On behalf of Galaxy Entertainment Group Limited (the "Company"), S.E.C.
File No. 82-3850, the enclosed copies of the following documents are submitted to
you in order to maintain the Company's exemption from Section 12(g) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Act") pursuant to Rule 12g3-2(b) under the
Act:

(1) The Company’s announcement regarding notice of annual general
meeting, dated April 28, 2006, published (in English language) in South
China Moming Post and published (in Chinese language) in Hong Kong
Economic Times, both on April 28, 2006;

(2) The Company’s circular regarding proposals for re-election of directors,
general mandate to repurchase shares and refreshment of scheme mandate

limit under the share option scheme, dated April 28, 2006;

(3) The Company’s 2005 annual report, dated April 28, 2006 together with a

proxy form; \/\
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(4) The Company’s announcement regarding the audited financial results of
Galaxy Casino, S.A. for the year ended December 31, 2005, dated April
26, 2006, published (in English language) in South China Morning Post
and published (in Chinese language) in Hong Kong Economic Times, both
on April 26, 2006,

(5) The Company's announcement regarding annual results for the year ended
December 31, 2005, dated April 11, 2006, published (in English language)
in South China Morning Post and published (in Chinese language) in
Hong Kong Economic Times, both on April 12, 2006;

(6) The Company’s announcement regarding change of registered office,
dated February 22, 2006, published (in English language) in South China
Morning Post and published (in Chinese language) in Hong Kong
Economic Times, both on February 23, 2006;

(7) The Company's announcement regarding disclosure under rule 13.09(1) of
the listing rules amendment to the terms of the series ‘B’ fixed rate notes,
dated January 16, 2006, published (in English language) in South China
Morning Post and published (in Chinese language) in Hong Kong
Economic Times, both on January 17, 2006.

The parts of the enclosed documents that are in Chinese substantially restate
the information appearing elsewhere in English.

We would appreciate your acknowledging receipt of these materials by
stamping and returning the enclosed copy of this letter. A self-addressed, stamped
envelope is énclosed for your convenience.

Very truly yours,
){ X
Simon Luk

Enclosure

cc:  Galaxy Entertainment Group Limited
1906310002136
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GALAXY ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED

(Incbrporated in Hong Kong with limited ‘Iiability)
(Stock Code: 27)

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

3

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the 2006 annual general meeting of shareholders of Galaxy Entertainment Group Limited wlill be held at Bailroom, Leval 3, JW
Marriott Hotel Hong Kong, Pacific Place, 88 Quesnsway, Hong Kong on Thursday, 29th Juns 2006 at.11:00 a.m. for the following purposes:

1

2.
3.
4

To receive and conslder the financlal statemants and reports of the directors and auditors tor the year ended 31st December 2005;
To elect directors and fix the directors’ remuneration; i
To re-appoint auditors and autherise the directors to fix thelr'remunersmon;

As speclal business, to conslder and, if thought fit, pass the following rbsolutions as Ordinary Resolutions:

4.1 ‘THAT

(a) sublact to paragraph (b) below, the exerclse by the diractors of the Company durlng the Relevant Period of ali the powars of the
Company to purchase shares of the Company be and it is hereby generally and unconditionally approved,;

(b} " the aggregate nominal amount of shares which may te-purchased on The Stock Exchange of Hong.Kong Limited or any other stock
exchange recognised for this purpose by the Securities and Futures Commisslon of Hong Kong and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong

Limited under the Hong Kong Coda on Share Repurchases pursuant 10 the approval In paragraph (a) above shall not exceed 10% of the -

aggregate nominal amount of the 'share capital of the Company In lasue at the date of passing this' Resolution, and-the sald approval shalt
be {imited accordingly; and

(¢} tar the purpose of this Resolution:
‘Relevant Perlod* means the perlod from the passing of this Resolution until whichever is the earllest of:
{0 the conclusion of the next annual general meeling of the ‘Company;

[{1}] the expiration of the period within which the next annual general meeting of the Company is required by the Companies
Qrdinance to be held; or

(il the ravocatlon or varlation of the approval glveri by this Resclution by ordlriary resolution of the shargholders In gensral mesting."
4.2 *THAT .
(a) subject to paragraph (¢) below, the axercise by the directors of the Company during the Relevant Period of all the. powers of the Compary

to allot, issue and deal with additional shares in the capital of the Company and {o make or grant ofters, agreements and options which
might require the exercise of such power be and It is hereby gensrally and unconditionally approved;

{o) the approval In paragraph (a) above shall authorise the directors of the Company during the Relevant Period to make or grant offers,
agreements and options which might require the exercize of such power after the. end ot the Relevant Perlod; .

() the aggregate nominal amount of share capital allotted or agreed canditionally or unconditionally to-be allotted (whether pursuant to an

optlon- or otherwlse) by the directors of the Company pursuant tc the epproval in paragraph (a) above, otherwise than pursuant to (I) a

Rights Issue, or (ll) the exerclse of rights of subscription or conversion under the tarms of any securlties which are convertible Into sharas

- of the Company o {lit} any option scheme or simitar arrangement for the time being adopted by the Company in accordance with the

Rules Governing the Llsting of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limlited for the grant or Issue of sharaa or rights to

acquire shares ot the Company, or (lv) any scrip dividend or similar arrangement. providing for the allotment of shares in lleu of the whole

or part of a dividend on shares of the Company In accordance with the Articles of Assoclation of the Company, shall not exceed the
aggragate of: :

{aa) 20% ot the aggregate nomina! amount of the shars capital of the Company in issue at the date of passing this Resolution; ant

(ob) (If the directors are s0 authorised by a separate ordinary resclution of the sharsholders of the Company) the nominal amount of

. . share capital of the Company repurchased by the Company subsequent to the passing of this Resolution (up to a maximum
equivalent to 10% of the.share capital of the Company in Issue at the date of passing the Resolution set out as rasolution 4.1 In
the notlce of the meeting of which this Resolution forme a pant), . '

and the sald approba! shall be limited accordingly; and M
(e for the purpose of this Resolution:

*Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of this' Resclution untlt whichever s the earliest of:

1)) the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company; .

()] the expiration of the perlod within which the next annual gensral meeting of the Compény ié required by the Companies
QOrdinance to ba hatd; or 8

[Gh] the revocation or varlation of the appraval given by this Resofution by ordinary resolution of the shareholders in general meeting; .

and .

"Rights Issus” means an offer of shares open for a period tixed by the directors of the Company to holders of shares of the Company on

the register on a fixed record dale in proportion to thelr then holdings of such shares (subject to such excluslon or sther arrangements as

the directors of the Company may deem necessary ot expedient (n relation 10 fractlonal entitlements or having regard 1o any restrictions

&r obliggtio;\s under the laws of, or the requirements of any recognised regulatory body or any stock exchange In, any territory cutside
ong Kong)."

4.3 'THAT the directors of the Company be and they are hersby authorised to exerclse the powers of the Company referred to rn'paragraph (a) 'ol the
resolution set out as resolution 4.2 In the notice of the mesting of which this Resolution forms a part In respect of the share capltal of the
Company referrad to In sub-paragraph (bb) of paragraph (c) of such resolution.* E .

4.4 “THAT sublect to and conditional upon the Listing Committee of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited granting the listing of and permission
to deal In the shares of the Company (“Shares") which may be Issued under the share option scheme adopted by the Company on 30th May 2002
(*Share Option Scheme®), the existing scheme mandate ‘limit In respect of the granting of optlons to subscribe for Shares be refreshed and
renawed provided that the total number of Shares which may te allotted and (ssued pursuant to the grant or exercise of the options under the
Share Option Scheme (excluding options previously granted, outstanding, cancelled, lapsed or exercised under the Share Option Schame) shall
not exceed 10% of the Shares In [ssue as al the date of passing this resolution (*Refreshed Limit’) dnd that the diractors of the Company be and
are hereby authorised, subject to compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing ot Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, to
grant options under the Share Option Schems up to.the Refreshac Limit and to exercise all the powers of the Company to allot, .issue’ and deal
with the Shares pursuant to the exercise of such options.”

By Order of the Board
Kitty Chan Lal Kit
Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 28th April 2008

Notes:
1.

2.

3.

Any member entitied 1o attend and vote at the meating is-sntitied 1o appoint one or more proxies to-attend and vols, on a poll, of His Benalf. A proxy nesd
not be a member of the Company. -

A form of proxy for use In connection with the meeting Is enclased with the Annual Report poé!ed to-the membars. The form of proxy sh’eﬁ be‘deposited at
the registered office of the Company not lass than 48 hours before the time for holding the mesting.

Concerning agenda item 2 above, Mr. Joseph Chee Ying Keung, Ms. Paddy Tang Lui Wal Yu and Mr. Moses Cheng Mo Chl will retire by ratation at the
meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election, Dstalils of the above directors are set out in the clircular enclosed: with the Annual Report.

Concerning agenda item 4.1 above, approvat is belng sought from members for increasing flexibliity and providing dlsctetion to the directors in the event
that It becomes desirable to repurchase shares repregenting up to a.maximum of 10% of the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the
Company in lssue at the date of passing the resciution on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. An explanatory statement to provide relevant
Information ln respect of the proposed granting of the cepurchage mandazs to the diractors is set out In the circular enclosed with the Annual Repont.
Concerning agenda item 4.2 above, approval is being sought from memburs for a general mandate to the directors to allot, Issue and deal In additional
shares In the capltal of the Company. ' !

Concerning agenda ltem 4.4 above, approval is being sought from mambers for a refreshment of the scheme manda'le limit under the share option scheme
adopted by the members on 30th May 2002. Information In respect of the refreshmaent which Is required to be disclosed to the members under the Rules
Governing the Listing ot Secprltles on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited Is set out In the clrcular enclossd with the nnual Report.

Ag at the date of this notice, the executive directors are Dr. Lul Che Woo, Mr. Franc{s Ltﬂ Ylv Tung, Mr. Chan Kal Nang, Mr. Jassph Ches Ying Keunfl, Mr. Willlam Lo Chi Chuno
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THIS CIRCULAR IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited takes no responsibility for the contents of this circular, makes no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any
loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this circular.

if you are in any doubt as fo any aspect of this circular or as to the action to be taken, you should consult
your stockbroker or other registered dealer in securities, bank manager, solicitor, professional accountant or
other professional adviser.

If you have sold or transferred all your shares in Galaxy Entertainment Group Limited, you should at once
hand this circular to the purchaser or transteree or to the bank, stockbroker or other agent through whom the
sale or transfer was effected for transmission to the purchaser or transferee.

This circular should be read in conjunction with the éccompanying Annual Report for the year ended 31st
December 2005.

GALAXY ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED

(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)
(Stock Code: 27)

PROPOSALS FOR RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS,
GENERAL MANDATE TO REPURCHASE SHARES
AND
REFRESHMENT OF SCHEME MANDATE LIMIT
UNDER THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME

28th April 2006
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DEFINITIONS

In this circular, unless the context otherwise requires, the following expressions shall have the following

meanings:

‘Affiliate’

‘Annual General Meeting’

‘Annual Report’
‘Article(s)”

‘Articles of Association”
‘associates’

‘Board”

‘Companies Ordinance’

‘Company”

‘connected persons’
‘Director(s)”
‘Dr. Lui’®

‘Employee’

‘Extraordinary General
Meeting”

*Hong Kong’

‘KWIH”

‘Latest Practicable Date”

any company which is (a) a holding company of the Company; or (b) a
subsidiary of a holding company of the Company; or (c) a subsidiary of the
Company; or (d) a controlling shareholder of the Company; or (e) a company
controlled by a controlling sharehclder of the Company; or {f) a company
controlied by the Company; or (g) an associated company of a holding
company of the Company; or (h) an associated company of the Company
the annual general meeting of the Company tc be held at Ballroom, Level 3,
JW Marriott Hotel Hong Kong, Pacific Place, 88 Queensway, Hong Kong on
29th June 2006 at 11:00 a.m.

the annual report of the Gompany for the year ended 31st December 2005
article(s) of the Articles of Association

articles of association of the Company

has the meaning ascribed to the expression under the Listing Rules

the board of Directors

Companies Ordinance, Chapter 32 of the Laws of Hong Kong

Galaxy Entertainment Group Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong
with limited liability, the shares of which are listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange

has the meaning ascribed to the expression under the Listing Rules

the director(s) of the Company

Dr. Lui Che Wog, a director and the Chairman of the Company

any person employed (on a full-time or part-time basis) by the Company or
any affiliate and any person who is a senior executive or director (whether
executive or non-executive) of the Company or any affiliate

the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 12th October 2005
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of The People’s Republic of
China

K. Wah International Holdings Limited, an exempted company incorporated in
Bermuda with limited liability, the shares of which are listed on the main

board of the Stock Exchange and a substantial shareholder of the Company

24th April 2006, being the latest practicable date prior to the printing of this
circular for ascertaining certain information in this circular

-1 =




DEFINITIONS

‘Listing Rules’
‘Lui Family Members’

‘Qualifying Grantee’

‘Repurchase Code’

‘Scheme Mandate Limit’

“Securities and Futures
Crdinance”

*Share Option Scheme

‘Share(s)”
‘Shareholder(s)’
“‘Stock Exchange’
‘Takeovers Code’
“Trusts”

‘HKS?

n%n

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
family members comprising Dr. Lui, his spouse, sons and daughters

any Employee or any consultant, agent, representative or adviser of the
Company or any affiliate; or any person who provides goods or services to
the Company or any affiliate; or any customer or contractor of the Company
or any atfiliate; or any business ally or joint venture partners of the Company
or any affiliate; or any trustee of any trust established for the benefit of
Employees

the Hong Kong Code on Share Repurchases

has the meaning ascribed thereto in the section headed “Refreshment of the
Scheme Mandate Limit under the Share Option Scheme” in the Letter from
the Board in this circular

Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong
the share option scheme adopted by the Company at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 30th May 2002

share(s) of HK$0.10 each in the capital of the Company

holder(s) of the Share(s)

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

the Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers

the two discretionary Lui Family trusts established by Dr. Lui as founder

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

per cent




LETTER FROM THE BOARD

SRLAX

GALAXY ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED

(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)
(Stock Code: 27)

Executive Directors: Registered Office:

Dr. Lui Che Woo, GBS, MBE, JP, LLD, DSSc {Chairman) Room 1606, 16th Floor
Francis Lui Yiu Tung (Deputy Chairman) Hutchison House

Chan Kai Nang 10 Harcourt Road
Joseph Chee Ying Keung Central

William Lo Chi Chung Hong Kong

Paddy Tang Lui Wai Yu, JP

Non-Executive Directors:

Dr. Charles Cheung Wai Bun, Jp*
Moses Cheng Mo Chi, GBS, OBE, JP
James Ross Ancell*

Dr. William Yip Shue Lam, LLo*

*

Independent Non-executive Directors
28th April 2006

To the Shareholders,

Dear Sir or Madam,

PROPOSALS FOR RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS,
GENERAL MANDATE TO REPURCHASE SHARES AND
REFRESHMENT OF SCHEME MANDATE LIMIT UNDER THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME

INTRODUCTION

The purpose of this circular is to provide you with information regarding resolutions to be proposed at
the Annual General Meeting relating to (i) the re-election of Directors; (i) the granting to the Directors of a
general mandate for the repurchase of Shares representing up to 10% of the Company’s issued share capital
as at the date of passing of such resolution; and (iii) the refreshment of the Scheme Mandate Limit.

RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
Pursuant to Article 106(A) of the Articles of Association, Mr. Joseph Chee Ying Keung, Ms. Paddy Tang
Lui Wai Yu and Mr. Moses Cheng Mo Chi shall retire by rotation at the Annual General Meeting and, being

eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Details of the Directors propesed to be re-zlected are set ocut in Appendix | to this circular.




LETTER FROM THE BOARD

GENERAL MANDATE TO REPURCHASE SHARES

At the Extraordinary General Meeting, an ordinary resolution was passed in relation to the granting of a
general mandate to the Directors to repurchase Shares not exceeding 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at that date (“Existing Repurchase Mandate’).

The Existing Repurchase Mandate will expire upon the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting. The
Directors consider that the Existing Repurchase Mandate increases the flexibility of the Board in managing
the Company’s affairs and is in the interests of the Shareholders, and that the same shall continue to be
adopted by the Company.

A new general mandate to repurchase Shares representing up to 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of passing of such resolution as set out in Resolution 4.1 in the notice of the Annual
General Meeting will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting (“New Repurchase Mandate’).

With reference to the proposed New Repurchase Mandate, the Directors wish to state that they have no
immediate plans to repurchase any Shares.

An explanatory statement containing the particulars required by the Listing Rules to enable the
Shareholders to make an informed view on whether to vote for or against Resolution 4.1 to be proposed at
the Annual General Meeting in relation to the New Repurchase Mandate is set out in Appendix Il to this
circular.

REFRESHMENT OF THE SCHEME MANDATE LIMIT UNDER THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Share Option Scheme was adopted on 30th May 2002. Pursuant to the terms of the Share Option
Scheme, among other things:

(1) the overall limit on number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other schemes
of the Company must not exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time (*Overall Limit");

(2} the total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of alt options to be granted under
the Share Option Scheme and any other schemes of the Company must not in aggregate exceed
10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme on 30th May
2002 (“Scheme Mandate Limit"); and

(3) the Company may by ordinary resolution of the Shareholders refresh the Scheme Mandate Limit.
However, the total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under all of the schemes of the Company under the limit as refreshed must not exceed
10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of approval of the limit. In this connection, options
previously granted under the schemes of the Company (inciuding those outstanding, cancelled,
lapsed in accordance with the scheme or exercised options) will not be counted for the purpose of
calculating the limit as refreshed.

Apart from the Share Option Scheme, the Company has no other share option scheme in effect as at
the Latest Practicable Date.

The existing Scheme Mandate Limit of the Share Option Scheme is 121,787,040 Shares, being 10% of

the Shares in issue as at the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme on 30th May 2002. As at the
Latest Practicable Date, options carrying rights to subscribe for a total of 61,736,000 Shares have been

— 4 —




LETTER FROM THE BOARD

granted under the Share Option Scheme, 14,344,000 of which have been exercised, 1,782,000 of which have
lapsed and 45,610,000 of which remain unexercised. Accordingly, 61,833,040 options, the underlying Shares
of which represent approximately 1.88% of the existing issued share capital of the Company, are available to
be granted under the Scheme Mandate Limit.

If the Scheme Mandate Limit is refreshed, on the basis of 3,290,579,361 Shares in issue as at the
Latest Practicable Date and assuming that no Shares are issued or purchased by the Company prior to the
Annual General Meeting, the Scheme Mandate Limit will be refreshed to 329,057,936 Shares and the
Company will be allowed to grant further options under the Share Option Scheme and any other schemes of
the Company carrying the rights to subscribe for a maximum of 329,057,936 Shares (“Refreshed Limit’).

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Company to grant options to the Qualitying
Grantees so as to attract and retain the best quality personnel for the development of the Company’s
businesses; to provide additional incentives to the Qualifying Grantees and to promote the long term financial
success of the Company by aligning the interest of option holders to Shareholders. The Directors believe that
the Share Option Scheme can provide Qualitying Grantees with the opportunity to acquire proprietary
interests in the Company and to encourage thera to work towards enhancing the value of the Company and
the Shares. However, the effectiveness of the Scheme Mandate Limit has been significantly reduced as the
issued share capital of the Company has substantially increased following the issue by the Company of new
Shares, inter alia, 1,840,519,798 Shares pursuant to the acquisition announced on 18th April 2005 and
146,000,000 Shares pursuant to the top-up placement announced on 2ist April 2005. As at the Latest
Practicable Date, 61,833,040 options, the underlying Shares of which represent approximately 1.88% of the
existing issued share capital of the Company, are available to be granted under the Scheme Mandate Limit.
The Directors consider that the Share Option Scheme can better serve its intended purpose of benefiting the
Group and the Shareholders if the Scheme Mandate Limit is refreshed. For these reasons, a resolution will
be proposed at the Annual General Mesting for refreshing the Scheme Mandate Limit.

The refreshment of the Scheme Mandate Limit is conditional upon:

a. the Shareholders passing an ordinary resolution to approve the Refreshed Limit in the Annual
General Meeting; and

b.  the Stock Exchange granting the approval of the listing of and permission to deal in the Shares to
be issued pursuant to the exercise of options under the Refreshed Limit.

Application will be made to the Stock Exchange for the approval of the listing of and permission to deal
in the Shares which may fall to be issued pursuant to the exercise of options under the Refreshed Limit.

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice cof the Annual General Meeting is set out in the Annual Report sent to Shareholders on the same
date as this circular. A proxy torm for use at the Annual General Meeting is enclosed with the Annual Report.
Whether or not you are able to attend the meeting, you are reminded to complete the proxy form in
accordance with the instructions printed thereon and return it to the registered office of the Company at
Room 1606, 16th Floor, Hutchison House, 10 Harcourt Road, Central, Hong Kong as soon as possible and, in
any event, so as to be received by the Company, not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for the
holding of the meeting. Completion and delivery of the form of proxy will not prevent you from attending and
voting in person at the meeting if you so wish.




LETTER FROM THE BOARD

PROCEDURE FOR DEMANDING A POLL

According to Article 75 of the Articles of Association, at any general meeting a resolution put to the
vote of the meeting shall be decided on a show of hands unless a poll is (before or on the declaration of the
result of the show of hands or on the withdrawal of any other demand for a poll) demanded: (i) by the
chairman of the meeting; or (ii) by at least three members present in person (or, in the case of a member
being a corporation, by its duly authorised representative) or by proxy for the time being entitled to vote at
the meeting; or (iii) by any member or members present in person (or, in the case of a member being a
corporation, by its duly authorised representative) or by proxy and representing not iess than one-tenth of the
total voting rights of all the members having the right to vote at the meeting; or (iv) by a member or members
present in person (or, in the case of a member being a corporation, by its duly authorised representative) or
by proxy and holding Shares conferring a right to vote at the meeting being Shares on which an aggregate
sum has been paid up equal to not less than one-tenth of the fotal sum paid up on all the Shares conferring
that right.

RECOMMENDATION

The Directors consider that the re-election of Directors, the New Repurchase Mandate and the
refreshment of the Scheme Mandate Limit are each in the best interests of the Company, and accordingly,
recommend all Shareholders to vote in favour of such resolutions to be proposed at the Annual General
Meeting.

RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

This circular includes particulars given in compliance with the Listing Rules for the purpose of giving
information with regard to the Company. The Directors collectively and individually accept full responsibility
for the accuracy of the information contained in this circular and confirm, having made all reasonable
enquiries, that to the best of their knowledge and belief there are no other facts the omission of which would
make any statement herein misleading.

GENERAL INFORMATION
Your attention is drawn to the additional information set out in the Appendices to this circular.

Yours faithfully,
For and on behalf of the Board
Dr. Lui Che Woo
Chairman




APPENDIX | DIRECTORS PROPOSED TO BE RE-ELECTED

The details of the Directors proposed for re-election at the Annual General Meeting are set out below:

Mr. Joseph Chee Ying Keung, aged 48, joined the Group in 1882. He has been an executive director
of the Company since April 2004 and is the Deputy Managing Director of the Construction Materials Division
of the Company. In addition, he is a director of a number of subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Chee holds an International Master degree in Business Administration from the University of South
Australia and a Bachelor degree in Mechanical Engineering from the University of Western Ontario in Canada.
He is a fellow member of The Institute of Quarrying in the UK and has over 24 years of broad experience in
the construction materials industry including operations and management, technical and quality assurance,
environmental protection, commercial and strategic planning. He is currently the Chairman of Hong Kong
Contract Quarry Association and a member of the Working Group on Construction Waste of the Provisional
Construction Industry Co-ordination Board. He was the Chairman of The Institute of Quarrying in the UK
{Hong Kong Branch) from 1998 to 2000.

Apart from being an executive director of the Company, Mr. Chee did not hold any directorship in any
listed public companies in the past three years. He does not have any relationships with any directors, senior
management or substantial or controlling sharehclders of the Company.

Mr. Chee’s service contract does not provide for a fixed length or proposed length of service with the
Company. Mr. Chee is not appointed for a specific term but shall be subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meeting in accardance with the Articles of Association. His emoluments
covered by the service contract comprise an annual package of HK$2,161,350, a director’s fee which will be
proposed by the Board and approved by the Shareholders at the subsequent year's annual general meeting,
discretionary share options and discretionary bonuses. A director's fee of HK$80,000 for the year ended 31st
December 2005 will be payable to Mr. Chee subject to the approval of the Shareholders at the Annual
General Meeting. In addition, Mr. Chee was granted share options by the Company during the year ended
31st December 2005 pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, which entitle him to subscribe for 270,000
Shares at an exercise price of HK$4.59 per Share, amounting to a share-based payment of HK$126,900
being recognized as his staff cost in the profit and loss statement of the Company. His emoluments are
determined by reference to his duties and responsibilities with the Company, the Company’s performance and
profitability, the Company’s remuneration policy and the market benchmark.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, Mr. Chae has interests in 2,450,000 Shares and share options
entitling him to subscribe for 270,000 Shares. Save as disclosed, Mr. Chee has no interests in the Shares
within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

To the best of the Directors' knowledge and belief and having made all reasonable enquiries, in relation
to Mr. Chee's proposed re-election, there is no infarmation that is required to be disclosed pursuant to any of
the requirements of paragraphs (h) to (v) of Rule 13.52(2} of the Listing Rules. Save as disclosed herein, the
Board is not aware of any other matters that need to be brought to the attention of the Shareholders.

Ms. Paddy Tang Lui Wai Yu, Jp, aged 52, joined the Group in 1980 and has been an executive
director of the Company since August 1991. She is also an executive director of KWIH, a substantial
shareholder of the Company, which is listed on the Stock Exchange. In addition, she is a director of a
number of subsidiaries of the Company.

Ms. Tang holds a bachelor of commerce degree from the McGill University, Canada and is a member of
The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. She is a member of the Election Committee of
the HKSAR. She is also a member of the Hong Kong Arts Development Council and a member of the Hong
Kong Antiquities Adviscry Board.




APPENDIX | DIRECTORS PROPOSED TO BE RE-ELECTED

Save as disclosed above, Ms. Tang did not hold any directorship in any listed public companies in the
past three years. Ms. Tang is a daughter of Dr. Lui and the elder sister of Mr. Francis Lui Yiu Tung, a
director and the Deputy Chairman of the Company. She is also a direct or indirect discretionary beneficiary of
the Trusts which are controlling shareholders of the Company. Save as disclosed, Ms. Tang does not have
any relationships with any directors, senior management or substantial or controlling shareholders of the
Company.

Ms. Tang has no service contract with the Company and there is no fixed length or proposed length of
service with the Company. Ms. Tang is not appointed for a specific term but shall be subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting in accordance with the Articles of Association. The
amount of emoluments payable to Ms. Tang comprises an annual director’s fee which will be proposed by the
Board and approved by the Shareholders at the subsequent year's annual general meeting, discretionary
share options and discretionary bonuses. A director's fee of HK$80,000 for the year ended 31st December
2005 will be payable to Ms. Tang subject to the approval of the Shareholders at the Annual General Meeting.
In addition, Ms. Tang was granted share options by the Company during the year ended 31st December 2005
pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, which entitle her to subscribe for 3,400,000 Shares at an exercise
price of HK$4.59 per Share, amounting to a share-based payment of HK$3,278,000 being recognized as her
staff cost in the profit and loss statement of the Company. Her emoluments are determined by reference to
her duties and responsibilities with the Company, the Company's performance and profitability, the Company’s
remuneration policy and the market benchmark.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, Ms. Tang has interests in 1,910,658,116 Shares (including deemed
interests) and share options entitling her to subscribe for 3,400,000 Shares. Save as disclosed, Ms. Tang has
no interests in the Shares within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

To the best of the Directors' knowledge and belief and having made all reasonable enquiries, in relation
to Ms. Tang's proposed re-election, there is no information that is required to be disclosed pursuant to any of
the requirements of paragraphs (h) to (v) of Rule 13.52(2) of the Listing Rules. Save as disclosed herein, the
Board is not aware of any other matters that need to be brought to the attention of the Shareholders.

Mr. Moses Cheng Mo Chi, GBS, OBE, JP, aged 56, has been a non-executive director of the Company
since August 1996. He is also an audit commitiee member of the Company. Save as disclosed, he does not
hold any positions with the Company or any subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Cheng is the senior partner of P.C. Woo & Co., a Hong Kong firm of solicitors. He is the Founder
Chairman of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors of which he is now the Honorary President and Chairman
Emeritus. He is the Chairman of the Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange. He is a non-official member of
the Executive Committee of the Commission on Strategic Development. He was a member of the Legislative
Council of Hong Kong from 1391 to 1995,

Mr. Cheng is currently a director of Beijing Capital International Airport Company Limited, China
COSCO Holdings Company Limited, China Mobile (Hong Kong) Limited, China Rescurces Enterprise, Limited,
City Telecom (H.K.) Limited, Guangdong Investment Limited, Kader Holdings Company Limited, Liu Chong
Hing Investment Limited, Shui On Construction and Materials Limited and Tian An China Investments Limited
— all of which are listed on the Stock Exchange. He is also a director of ARA Asset Management
{Singapore) Limited, the manager of the Fortune Real Estate Investment Trust which is listed on the
Singapore Stock Exchange. He was previously a director of COL Capital Limited, Kingway Brewery Holdings
Limited, Pokfulam Development Company Limited, Quality HealthCare Asia Limited and International Financial
Network Holdings Ltd. — all of which are listed on the Stock Exchange. Save as disclosed, he did not hold
any directorships in any listed public companies in the past three years.
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Mr. Cheng is the senior partner of P.C. Woo & Co., a Hong Kong firm of solicitors, which provides legal
services on normal commercial terms to certain companies controlled by Dr. Lui. Save as disclosed, he has
no relationships with any directors, senior management or substantial or controlling shareholders of the
Company.

Mr. Cheng has no service contract with the Company and there is no agreed length or proposed length
of service with the Company. His existing term as director of the Company will expire at the Annual General
Meeting and he shall be subject to retirement by rotation and be eligible for re-election. The amount of
director's emoluments payable to Mr. Cheng comprises an annual director’'s fee and an annual audit
committee member's fee which will be proposed by the Board and approved by the shareholders of the
Company at the subsequent year's annual general meeting, and discretionary share options. A director's fee
of HK$80,000 and an audit committee member’s fee of HK$80,000 for the year ended 31st December 2005
will be payable to Mr. Cheng subject to the approval of the Shareholders at the Annual General Meeting. In
addition, Mr. Cheng was granted share options by the Company during the year ended 31st December 2005
pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, which entitle him to subscribe for 200,000 Shares at an exercise price
of HK$4.59 per Share, amounting to a share-basad payment of HK$94,000 being recognized as his staff cost
in the profit and loss statement of the Company. His emoluments are determined by reference to his duties
and responsibilities with the Company, the Company's performance and profitability, the Company’s
remuneration policy and the market benchmark.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, Mr. Cheng has interests in share options entitling him to subscribe
for 500,000 Shares. Save as disclosed, Mr. Cheng has no interests in the Shares within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge and belief and having made all reasonable enquiries, in relation
to Mr. Cheng's proposed re-election, there is no information that is required to be disclosed pursuant to any
ot the requirements of paragraphs (h) to (v) of Rule 13.52(2) of the Listing Rules. Save as disclosed herein,
the Board is not aware of any other matters that need to be brought to the attention of the Shareholders.




APPENDIX I EXPLANATORY STATEMENT

This Appendix contains the particulars that are required by the Listing Rules fo be included in an
explanatory statement to enable the Shareholders to make an informed view on whether to vote for or against
the resolution to be proposed at the Annual General Meeting in relation to the proposed repurchase mandate.

SHARE CAPITAL

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the issued share capital of the Company comprised 3,290,579,361
Shares. As at the same date, there are outstanding share options granted under the Share Option Scheme
and the share option scheme of the Company adopted on 10th September 1996 and expired on 9th
September 2000 to subscribe for 53,508,000 Shares.

Subject to the passing of the resolution granting the proposed mandate to repurchase Shares and on
the basis that no further Shares are issued (whether generally or pursuant to the exercise of the subscription
rights attaching to the outstanding share options) or repurchased before the Annual General Meeting, the
Company will be allowed to repurchase a maximum of 329,057,936 Shares during the period ending on the
earliest of: (i) the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company; or (i) the date by which
the next annual general meeting of the Company is required to be held by the Articles of Association or by
law; or (iii) the date upon which such authority is revoked or varied by a resolution of the Shareholders in
general meeting.

REASONS FOR REPURCHASES

The Directors believe that it is in the best interests of the Company and the Shareholders to seek a
general authority from the Shareholders to enable the Company to repurchase Shares on the Stock
Exchange. Such repurchases may, depending on market conditions and funding arrangements at the time,
lead to an enhancement of the net assets value of the Company and/or earnings per Share and will only be
made when the Directors believe that such a repurchase will benefit the Company and the Shareholders.

The Directors have no present intention to repurchase any Shares and they would only exercise the
power to repurchase in circumstances where they consider that the repurchase would be in the best interests
of the Company and in circumstances where they consider that the Shares can be repurchased on terms
favourable to the Company. On the basis of the consolidated financial position of the Company as at 31st
December 2005, being the date to which the latest published audited accounts of the Company were made
up, the Directors consider that if the general mandate to repurchase Shares were o be exercised in full at
the currently prevailing market value, there might be a material adverse impact on the working capital position
and gearing position of the Company. The Directors do not propose to exercise the mandate to repurchase
Shares to such an extent as would, in the circumstances, have a material adverse effect on the working
capital requirements of the Company as compared with the position disclosed in the latest published audited
financial statements or the gearing levels which in the opinion of the Directors are from time to time
appropriate for the Company.

FUNDING OF REPURCHASES
Repurchases made pursuant to the proposed mandate to repurchase Shares would be funded out of

funds legally available for the purpose in accordance with the Articles of Association and the Companies
Ordinance.

— 10 —
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EFFECT.OF THE TAKEOVERS CODE

If as a result of a repurchase of Shares, a Shareholder’s proportionate interest in the voting rights of
the Company increases, such increase will be treated as an acquisition for the purposes of Rule 32 of the
Takeovers Code and Rule 6 of the Repurchase Code. Accordingly, a Shareholder, or a group of Shareholders
acting in concert, depending on the level of increase of the Shareholders’ interest, could obtain or consolidate
control of the Company and would become obliged to make a mandatory offer in accordance with Rule 26 of
the Takeovers Code.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the Trusts, Lui Family Members and respective associate and
companies controlled by them were interested in 1,721,247,500 Shares representing 52.31% of the issued
share capital of the Company. KWIH, which is controlled by one of the Trusts, was interested in 614,984,047
Shares representing 18.69% of the issued share capital of the Company.

Based on the above shareholding interests, in the event that the power to repurchase Shares pursuant
to the New Repurchase Mandate is exercised in full, and taking no account of the exercise of cutstanding
share options, the aggregate interests of the Trusts, KWIH, Lui Family Members and respective associates
and companies controlled by them would be increased to approximately 78.89% of the issued share capital of
the Company and the Shares held by the public will fall below 25% of the total number of Shares in issue.
The Directors are not aware of any consequence which would give rise to an obligation to make a mandatory
offer under Rule 28 of the Takeovers Code. The Directors have no present intention to exercise the New
Repurchase Mandate which will result in the number of the Shares held by the public being reduced to less
than 25%.

SHARE PRICES

The following table shows the highest and lowest prices at which the Shares have been traded on the
Stock Exchange in each of the past twelve months preceding the Latest Practicable Date;

Month Highest Lowest
(HK$) (HKS$)
2005
April 11.000 6.450
May 7.600 5.300
June 6.350 5.500
July 5.750 4.475
August 6.150 5.100
September 6.150 5.200
October 5.450 3.550
November 4.575 3.800
December 4.600 3.900
2006
January 5.300 4.250
February 5.450 4.875
March 7.000 4.950

April (up to the Latest Practicable Date) 7.800 6.550
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REPURCHASE OF SHARES

The Company had not purchased any of its Shares (whether on the Stock Exchange or otherwise} in
the six months preceding the date of this circular.

GENERAL

To the best of their knowledge and having made all reasonable enquiries, none of the Directors nor any
of their associates currently intend to sell Shares o the Company or its subsidiaries.

No connected persons of the Company, as defined in the Listing Rules, have notified the Company that
they have a present intention to sell Shares to the Company, or have undertaken not to do so in the event
that the Company is authorised to make repurchases of the Shares.

The Directors have undertaken to the Stock Exchange that, so far as the same may be applicable, they
will exercise the proposed mandate tc repurchase Shares in accordance with the Listing Rules and the
applicable taws of Hong Kong.

— 12 —
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GALAXY ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED
B BRLEMERE QG

" (incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)
Stock Code: 27
CHANGE OF REGISTERED OFFICE

The board of directors, of Galaxy Entertainment. Group Limited (the
“Company”®) announces that the registered office of the Company has
been changed to Roorn 1606, 16th Floor, Hutchison House, 10 Harcourt
Road, Central, Hong Kong with effect from 22 February 2006.

By Order of the Board
Kitty Chan Lai Kit
Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 22 February 2006

As at the date of this announcement, the executive directors are Dr. Lui Che Woo,
Mr. Francis Lui Yiu Tung, Mr. Chan Kai Nang, Mr. Joseph Chee Ying Keung, Mr. William
Lo Chi Chung and Ms. Paddy Tang Lui Wai Yu; the non-executive director is Mr. Moses
Cheng Mo Chi; and the independent non-executive directors are Dr. Charles Cheung
Wai Bun, Mr. James Ross Ancell and Dr. William Yip Shue Lam,
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(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited //ab///ty)

Stock Code: 27

Disclosure under Rule 13.09(1) of the Listing Rules
Amendment to the terms of the Series ‘B’ Fixed Rate Notes

Financial adviser

AnGLO CHINESE

CORPORATE FINANCE, LIMITED

The directors of the Company are pleased to announce that the rmembers of the Lui Family who hold Series 'B' FRNs have agreed to amend
terms of their Series ‘B’ FRNs, the outstanding principal of which is HK$2,371,805,067, amongst other things to:

. Extend the maturity date from 21 August 2006 by more than two years to 30 September 2008,
. Reduce the interest rate from the last applicable stepping-up rate of 9% to a fixed rate ot 6% per annum compounded annually; and
. If the Company issues shares or debts convertible into shares, the Company is. no longer required to apply the net proceeds of such

issuance, afler repaying the Series ‘A’ FRNs, in or towards repayment of the Series 'B' FRNs, but may do so at its discretion.
Details of the amendments to the Series ‘B’ FRNs are summarised below.

The amendments to the Series ‘B FRNs constitute financial assistance provided to the Company by members of the Lui Family, who are
connected persons under the Listing Rules. Such financial assistance, which is provided on an unsecured basis and on normal commercial
terms or better, is exempt from reporting, announcement and independent shargholders' approval requirements by Rule 14A.65(4) of the
Listing Rules. The directors of the Company consider that, given the materiality of the Series ‘B’ FRNs and the favourable amendments to
their terms, the information is necessary for the Company's shareholders and the public generally to appraise the position of the Company.

AMENDMENT TO THE TERMS OF THE SERIES ‘B* FRNS
Introduction

On 22 July 2005, on completion of its acquisition of a 87.9%
economic inierest in Galaxy Casino, the Company issued, as part
of the acquisition consideration, FRNs in the total amount of
HK$2,544,239,603, of which HK$172,434,536 are Series ‘A’ FRNs,
and HK$2,371,805,067 are Series '‘B' FRNs. City Lion Profits Corp.
and Recurrent Profits Limited, which are Lui Family members, hold all
the Series ‘B’ FRNs.

On 14 January 2008, the Company agreed with the above members
of the Lui Family to amend the terms of the Series 'B' FRNs as
regards interest, maturity and early repayment.

Original terms of the Series ‘B’ FRNs

The principal terms of the Series ‘B° FRNs on issue, which are
identical in all respects to the Series ‘A’ FRNs, except that Series ‘A
FRNs have priority as to repayment, are summarized as follows:

Tenor: Unlegs previously redeemed, the Series ‘B
FRNs will be repaid on 21 August 2006 (being
thirteen months after the date of their issue).

Interest: For the first month following their issue, the
Series 'B’ FRNs were interest free and
thereafter the interest rate was to be 6% per
annum for the second to fourth month of their
issue, increasing by 1% for each successive
three months period, so that the interest rate
per annum increases successively from 7% to
8%, and finally 9% per annum, Interest is
payable at the end of each three month
period, the first interest payment being on 21
November 2005,

At the option of the Company, the FRNs can be
repaid early but it before their redemption, the
Company issues shares or debts which are
convertible into shares (other than shares
issued under an employee share option
scheme or under an obligation existing as at
14 March 2008}, it is required to use all the net
proceeds to repay the FRNs. Repayments, in
all situations, are to be made to the holders of
the Series 'A’ FRNs in priority befare repayment
of the Series 'B' FRNs. After all the Series 'A’

COMNeE mrerms reamaid tm $16ll $hem med memmarmesedAes rei1od

Early repayment:

the city club casinos from now to 2008 is estimated to be not less
than HK$7,000 million. Gataxy Casino has. completed its US$600
million fixed and tloating rate notes issuance on 15 December 2005.

Under the amendments, maturity, interest payment, and repayment of
Series 'B' FRNs are now aligned with the cashflow of the Company
from the Galaxy StarWorld and the theme casino in phase 1 of the
Galaxy Cotlai Mega Resort upon iheir full operation by 2008.
Reducing interest to 6% per annum and deferring final repayment of
principal and interest payment to 30 September 2008 improve the
Company's borrowing cost. Series 'B° FRNs, following the
amendments, will no longer be classified as a short-term tiability in
the consoclidated financial statements of the Company.

The amendments are on favourable terms to the Company. The
Company is no longer required to apply the tunds raised from equity
or equity-convertible debt issuance (after expenses.and repaying the
Series 'A’ FRNs) in or towards repayment of the Series '‘B' FRNs, but
may do so at its discretion. The Lui Family is also entitled to
effectively capitalize amount owing on their Series ‘B' FRNs if they do
pasticipate in such issuance. This fully retlects the Lui Family's
support to the Company's gaming and hospitality business in Macau
and their full faith on the prospect of the Company.

The amendments to the Series 'B' FRNs improve the barrowing cost,
capital profile, and gearing ratio and give the board of directors of the
Company flexibility in managing the finance of the Group. The
directors of the Company, including the independent non-executive
directors, are unanimous that these amendmenis and the amended
Series 'B’ FRANs are on normal commercial lerms or belter so tar as
the Company is cancerned and are in the interests of the Company
and its shareholders as a whole.

DIRECTORS

"At the date of this announcement, the executive directors of the

Company are Dr. Lui Che Woo, Mr. Francis Lui Yiu Tung, Mr. Chan
Kai Nang, Mr. Joseph Chee Ying Keung, Mr. William Lo Chi Chung
and Ms. Paddy Tang Lui Wai Yu; the non-executlive director of the
Company is Mr. Moses Cheng Mo Chi; and the independent non-
executive directars of the Company are Dr. Charles Cheung Wai Bun,
Mr. James Ross Ancell and Dr. William Yip Shue Lam.

By order of the Board of
Gataxy Entertainment Group Limited
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Qriginal terms of the Series 'B' FANs

The principal terms of the Series 'B' FRNs on issue, which are
identical in all respects to the Series ‘A’ FRNs, except that Series ‘A’
FRNs have priority as to repayment, are summarized as follows:

Tenor: Unless previously redeemed, the Series ‘B’
FRNs will be repaid on 21 August 2006 (being
thirteen months after the date of their issue).

interest: For the first month following their issue, the
Series ‘B’ FRNs were interest free and
thereafter the interest rate was to be 6% per
annum for the second to fourth month of their
issue, increasing by 1% for each successive
three months period, so that the interest rate
per annum increases successively from 7% to
8%, and finally 9% per annum. Interest is
payable at the end of each three month
period, the first interest payment being on 21
November 2005.

At the option of the Company, the FRNs can be
repaid early but if before their redemption, the
Company issues shares or debts which are
convertible into shares (other than shares
issued under an employee share option
scheme or under an obligation existing as at
14 March 2005), it is required to use all the net
proceeds to repay the FRNs. Repayments, in
all situations, are to be made to the holdars of
the Series ‘A’ FRNs in priority before repavment
of the Series ‘B’ FRNs. After all the Seriss 'A'
FRNs are repaid in full, the net proceeds must
be used to repay the Series ‘B’ FRNs.

Default: In the event of default, the holders of FRNs can
by giving notice require the Company to
accelerate the repayment of their FRNs,
together with all accrued interest. Repayments
are to be made in priority to the holders of the
Series ‘A’ FRNs. No repayments of the Series
‘B’ FRNs are to be made until all the Series 'A'
FRNs are repaid in full.

Early repayment:

Default interest: A rate of 12% per annum.

Amended terms

The following principal terms of the Series ‘B’ FRNs have been
amended:

Tenor: The Series ‘B' FRNs are repayable on 30
September 2008.
Interest: Interest on the outstanding principal is fixed at

6% per annum which is cumulative and
compounded annually, and will only be
payable when the Series ‘B’ FRNs are repaid,
or on maturity, whichever is earlier. If the
Company declares dividends to its
shareholders belore redemption of the Serles
‘B'" FRNs, then all interest accrued up to the
date its Board deciares the dividends shall first
be paid before the Company pays dividends to
its shareholders. Interest will accrue from 14
January 2006 until full repayment or final
maturity of the -Series ‘B’ FRNs on 30
September 2008.

Early repayment: Subject to the priority of Series 'A’ FRNs, if the
Company issues shares or debts convertible
into shares before FRNs redemption (other than
shares issued under an employee share option
scheme or under an obligaticn existing as at 14
March 20085), the Company is no longer
required to apply the net proceeds of such
share or convertible debt Iissuance, after
repaying the Series 'A' FRNs, in or towards
repayment of the Series ‘B’ FRNs, but may do
so al its discretion, Series 'B' FRNs holders are
entitled to effectively capitalize the amount of
principal and interest owing on their Serics ‘B’
FRNs through participating in such issuance,
and any amount capitalized will be treated as
redeemed. Any such participation will be
subject to the Listing Rules.

All other terms of the Series ‘B’ FRNs remain unchanged. All interest
accrued on the Series ‘B' FRNs at 13 January 2006 has been paid.

Series ‘A" FRNs

The terms of the Series ‘A" FRNs remain unchanged. The principal
outstanding of the Series ‘A’ FRNs, as of the date of this
announcement, is HK$172,434,536.

Reasons for the amendments

The Group is actively developing its gaming and hospitality business
in Macau. Key gaming and hospitality investments in Macau include
Galaxy Casino's proprietary projects at the Galaxy StarWorld and the
flagship project Galaxy Cotai Mega Resort, in addition to the three
city club casinos, details of all of which are contained in the joint
circular by the Company and K. Wah International Holdings Limited
dated 30 June 2005. Total capital investment on these projects and

The amendments are on favourable terms to the Company. The
Company is no longer required to apply the funds raised from equity
or equity-convertible debt issuance (aiter expenses.and repaying the
Series ‘A’ FRNs) in or towards repayment of the Series ‘B’ FANs, but
may do so at its discretion. The Lui Family is also entitled to
effectively capitalize amount owing on their Series ‘B’ FRNs if they do
participate in such issuance. This fully reflects the Lui Family's
support to the Company's gaming and hospitality business in Macau
and their full faith on the prospect of the Company.

The amendments to the Series ‘B’ FRNs improve the borrowing cost,
capital profile, and gearing ratio and give the board of directors of the
Company flexibility in managing the finance of the Group. The
directors of the Company, including the independent non-executive
directors, are unanimous that these amendments and the amended
Series ‘B' FRNs are on normal commercial terms or better so far as
the Company is concerned and are in the interests of the Company
and its shareholders as a whole.

DIRECTORS

At the date of this announcement, the executive directors of the
Company are Dr. Lui Che Woo, Mr. Francis Lui Yiu Tung, Mr. Chan
Kai Nang, Mr. Joseph Chee Ying Keung, Mr. William Lo Chi Chung
and Ms. Paddy Tang Lui Wai Yu; the non-executive director of the
Company is Mr. Moses Cheng Mo Chi; and the independent non-
executive directors of the Company are Dr. Charles Cheung Wai Bun,
Mr. James Ross Ancell and Dr. William Yip Shue-Lam.

By order of the Board of
Galaxy Entertainment Group Limited
Kitty Chan Lai Kit
Company Secrelary

Hong Kong, 16 January 2006
DEFINITIONS

In this announcement, the following terms have the following
meanings unless the context requires otherwise,

the “Company” Galaxy Entertainment Group Limited
MAESEHEAER LA, a company incorporated
in Hong Kong with limited liability, the shares
of which are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange.

“FRNs" Unsecured fixed rate notes, comprising both
) Series ‘A’ and Series 'B' FANs, issued by the
Company on 22 July 2005 as part of the
purchase consideration for a 97.9% economic
interest in Galaxy Casino, which notes have at
the date of this announcement an outstanding
principal amount of HK$2,544,239,603.

Galaxy Casino, S.A., a subsidiary of the
Company incorporated in Macau in which the
Company is interested in 88.1% of the voting
shares carrying 97.9% of the economic interest
and holder of one of three gaming concessions
in Macau.

"Galaxy Casino”

the “Group” The Company and its subsidiaries.

“independent third A person or persons who is or-are independent
party” or of any director, chief executive or substantial
‘independent shareholder of any member.of the Group or any
third parties” of their respective associates, as defined by the

Listing Rules.

The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange.

“Listing Rules”

“Lui Family” Dr. Lui Che Wopo, the chairman of the
Company, his children and their respective
associates and companies controlled by them
and any discretionary trust established of which
any of them is a beneficiary.

“Macau” The Macau Special Administrative Region of
The People's Republic of China.

"Series ‘A’ FRNs" The FRNs with an outstanding principal amount
of HK$172,434,536, all of which are held (as to
HK$85,771,245) by Brightwealth Investments
Limited (an independent third party) and (as to
HK$86,663,291) by Future Leader Management
Limited, which is ultimately benetficially owned
by Mr. Pedro Ho (a director of Galaxy Casino).

“Series 'B' FRNs" The FRNs with an outstanding principal amount

of HK$2,371,805,067, all of which are held by
members of the Lui Family.

“share(s)" Share(s) of HK$0.10 each in the capital of the
Company.
“shareholders” .~ Holders of shares.

“Stock Exchange” The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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. ANNOUNCEMENT

GCSA, a subsidiary of the Company, Which holds the Concessien awarded by the Macau Government to operate casinos in Macau,
published its financial information in Macau on 26 Aprit 2006. Such financial information of GCSA is provided bstow.

This anncuncement is made by Galaxy Entertainment Group
Limited (the 'Compandy'g in compliance with the disclosure
requiraments of Rule 13, (12_:01 the Rules Govsrning the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited to
provide sharehotders of the Camparn with {inancial information of a
diary-which was published in Macau on 26 April 2006.

Galaxy Casino, S.A. ("GCSA')} is a subsidiary of the Company,
which'is incerporated In Macau and holds ong of only three %immg
concessions  {the *Concession”) awarded by  the acau
Government to operate casinos In Macau. “The Company
Indirectly holds 88.1% of the voting shares carrying 97.9% of the
economic interest’ i GCSA. Under the terms of the Concesslon,
GCSA is raquired to publish its annual audited financial results In
one Chinese |anFuage newspaper and in one Porlugugse language
rh\ﬂewspaper cireufating in Macau as well as in the Official Gazette of
acau.

As GGSA became a subsidiary of the Company on 22 July 2005
gaelnq the date of completion of the acquisition of GCSA by the
ompany), the audiled financial results of GCSA for the ‘period
from 22 July 2005 to 31 Dacember 2005 Frepared under Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards were already Included in the
audited consolidated results of the Groug for_the year ended 31
December 2005 announced on 11 Aprit 2006. The Direclors of the
Company consider that, %IVBI’! the materlality of GCSA as a
veincipal- subsidiary of the Company, the  tull-year audited
inancial results of GCSA for the year ended 31 Dacember 2005
are necessary for the shareholders of the Company and the public
generally to appraise the position of the Company.

An extract of the audited financial statemants of GCSA for the year
ended 31 December 2005 preparad in accordance with accounting
%rlnaples as_set out In Section 3 of Chaf)ler 1 of Macao
ommercial Code and the Macao Otfficial Plan ot Accounting
under Decrea Law No. 34/83 transiated into English, which was
published in Macau on 26 April 2006 in Chinese and Portuguess, is
sot out below. The accounting principles adopted In the
rrapautlen of these financial statements are ditferent from
hose adopted by the Group under the Hong Kong Financlal
Reporting Standards.

GALAXY CASINOG, S.A.
CONSOLIDATED. BALANCE SHEET

"AS AT 31ST DECEMBER 2005

MOP'000
SSETS
Cursent assets
Cash on hand 148,468
Cash at bank 4,949,538

8,007

Short-term receivables
ime deposils
Other receivables

266,928
6,577

Inventories
Consumable goods

Capital assets
nvestments
Tangible fixed assets
Intangible assets R
Assels under construction

Accuriulated amortisation and dapreciation

Preaald expensas

ther: prepayments 98,859
Oelarrad expenditure 158,026
.....256,885
Total assets 6,735,171
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Trade craditors 340,175
Short-tarm borrowings 128,750
QOthet payables 465,352
Provision for special gaming 1ax and funds to the
Government 121,968
... 1056,248
Lons term liablitiss
otes payable 4,820,400
Other payables 93
L. $820,489
Total liabilities ..5,876,738
EQUITY '
Share capital and reserves
Share capital 951,800
Accumulated losses (99,671)
852,229
Profit for the year 6,204
Totalequiy 858,433 .
Total equity and liabilities 6,735,171

<o wNew-borrowings .« . e e -

GALAXY CASINO, S.A.
CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3157 DECEMBER 2005

MOP'000

Revenues
Gaming and other related revenues 3,987,618
interest income 22,335
Otner revenue 5,387
Total revenues ...4.015,341

Expenses . .
Special gaming tax anc funds to the Government  (1,574,398)

Other expenses 1o third parties {2,059,334)
Staff costs (333,847)
Finance costs {30,087}
Amortisation and depraziation (9,415)
Total expe'nses ..(4,007,191)
Operating profit 8,150 .
Other operating expenses {1,846)
Profit betore income fax " 6,204
[ncome tax expenses =
Profit tor the ysar . ) 6,204
GALAXY CASINO, S.A.
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED U167 DECEMBER 2005
MOP 000
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash usad in operations - (134,523}
interest paid {15,811)

interest elament of finanice lease rental paymants (63)

Net cash used in operating activities ....(150,497)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of tangible lixad assets (7,665)
Purchases of assets under construction (607,090)
Purchases of intangible assets 265)
increase in time deposils (5,748)
Interest received 22,335
Net cash used in investing activities ....1599,43%)
Cash fiows from financing activities
Praceads from isguance of naw shares 751,800
Proceeds from issuance of notes payable 4,820,400
Issue cost for notes ‘payable (159,263)
Dacrease in loan from immediate hoiding company (200,858)

1,500
Repayment of borrowings (249,260)
Capital element of finance lease payments 225)

Net cash from financing activilies 5,014,193

Net increase in cash and bank balances 4,265,262
Cash and bank balances at beginning of the year 832,745
_Cash and bank balances at end of the year 5,098,007

GENERAL

Sharsholders should note that the aboge financial information
pertains only to GCSA and not to the Company itsetf.

DIRECTORS

Al thé date of this announcement, the exaculive directors of the
Company are Dr. Lui Che Wa0, Mr, Franeis Lul Yiu Tung, Mr. Chan
Kai Nang, Mr. Joseph Chee Ying Keung, Mr. William Lo Chi Chung.
and Ms, Paddy Tang Lul Wai Yu; the non-executive director of the
Company is Mr. Moses Cheng Mo Chi; and the ingependent non-
executive directors of the Company are Dr. Charles Cheung Wai
Bun, Mr, James Ross Ancell and Dr. William Yip Shue La?.

4
By Order of the Board of
Galaxy Entertalnment Group Limited
Kitty Chan. Lal Kit
Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 28 April 2008
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ANNUAL RESULTS

SRLAXS

GALAXY ENTERTAINMENT GROUP LIMITED

The Directors of Galaxy Entertainment Group Limited (the “Company"} are pleased to
announce the audited consolidated results of the Company and its subsidiaries (coflectively

referred to as the “Group™) for the year ended 31st December 2005 as follows:

The turnover of the Group for the year ended 31st December 2005 was HK$1,292 million

representing a decrease of HK$7 million over the previous year.

The profit attributable to.shareholders for the year ended 31st December 2005 amounted to

HK$2,395

n representing an increase of HK$2,339 million over the previous year.

The profit attributable to shareholders for the year ended 31st December 2005 included an

excess of fair vajue of net assets acquired over cost of acqui

n ot subsidiaries of HK$3,039

million which arose from the acquisition of 88.1% of the voting shares carrying 97.9% of the
economic intergst in Galaxy Casino, S.A. (“Galaxy”) on 22nd July 2005. Following the
acquisition, gaming and entertainment have become one of the major businesses of the

Group and this di
from the date of acquisition to December 2005.

FINAL DIVIDEND
Tha Board of Directors has resolved not to recommand any final
31st December 2005 {2004: 1 cent per sharey

CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND 1OSS STATEMENT <
For The Year Ended 31st December 2005

Note

Turnover 384
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other revenues 4
Excess of fair value of net assets acquirad over cost of
acquisition ot subsidiaries 1
Other operating income
Administrative expenses
Other operating expenses

Oparating profit 385
Finance costs
Share ot profits less losses of

Jointly controlled entities

Assaciated comparnies

Profit before taxation
Taxation 6

Profit tor the year

Attributable to:
Shareholders of the Company
Minority interests

Oividends 7

Mm:._:cm per share 8
Basic
Dituted

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

2005
HK$'000

1,291,927

(1,181,342)
110,585
52,029
3,039,019
56,247

(196,662)

{471,128)

2,590,090
(116.423)

(77,975)
2,696

2,398,388
(1,683)

2,396,705

HK cents

110.7
109.4

ion contributed a turnover of HK$66 million to the Group. for the period

lend for the year ended

Restated
2004
HK$000
1,298,143

1.244,337)
54,806
21,355

49,448
(54,376)
(15,084)

56,149
(7.794)

13,866
2.561

64,782

_(2:295)

62,487

55,886
6,601

62,487
e———

25,805

HK cents

4.4
4.3

BTIRELEBRER QA
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)
(Stock Code : 27)

ANNOUNCEMENT OF ANNUAL RESULTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2005

HKAS 39 (Amendment)

HKAS 40

HK(SIC)-Int 12 Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities

HK(SIC}-1m 13 Jointly Controlled Entitias — N y Contil by

HK(SIC)-int 15 Operating Leases — Incentives

HK(SIC)-Int 21 Income Taxes - Recavery of Revalued Non-Depreclable Assets

HEK(IFRIC)-tnt t Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restaration and Similar
Liabilities

HKFRS 2 Share-based Payments

HKFRS 3 Business Combinations

HKAS 1 has affected the presemtation of minority interests, share of net after-tax results of

and jointly antities and other in the financiat

whereas HKAS 24 has affected the identification of relatad parties and some other refated-party
disclosures. The adoption cf the new HKASs 2, 7, 8, 10, 21, 23, 27, 28, 31, 33 and HK(SIC)-Ints 12,
13, 15 and 21 does not have any material effect on the accounting policies of the Group. The major

changes in the aecount

m

@)

(3

(D]

ing

s are summarisad as follow:

The adoption of the ravised HKAS 17 bas resulted in a change in the accounting policy
refating to the ion of of lease it from property, plant and
equipment to leasehold tand and land use rights. Tha up-front prepayments made for the

(b} impact to 2004 financial statements

Tha tollowing tables set out the impact made in accordance with the respective new

HKFRSs as set out above 10 each of the ralevant headings

the consolidated profil and

loss’statement and balance sheet as praviously reportad in the financial stalements for the

year ended 31st Dacember 2004:

o

Tumover
Cost of sales

Gross profit
Other revenues.
Other operating income

Consolidatad peolit and Joss statement

feasehold fand and lard use rights are expensed in the profit and loss on a
slraight-ling basis over the period ol the Jease unless the property is under devetapment or

when there is imp: L tha in the profit and loss statement. In
prévious years. tho leasehold land classitied under property, plant and equipment was
accounted for at fair value or cost less. iation and i

The adoption of HKASs 32 and 39 has tesulted in a change in the accounting policy relating
to the classilicaticn o financial assets at fair valug through profit or loss (including other
invesiments) and sailable-for-sale linancial assets. It has also resulted in the changs in the

gnition and of loans and L ings and hedging act
Loans and i and held ity at amoniised cost using
the elective interest method. Borrowings are recognised initially at falr value, net of
transaction costs incurfed, and subsequenily stated at amortised cosl using effactive
interest method,

in previous years, the Group classitied , other than ,
companies and jointly controlled entities, as long-term investments and shon-term
investments. Securities intended to be held for identified long-term purpose or strategic

cost less provision for impairment. The carrying amounts of. individual investments were
reviewed al each balance sheet date to assess for impairment. Securities which were

Other operating
expenses

Operating profit
Finance costs
Share of profits less
losses of
Jointly controtied

Assaociated
companies

Profit bafore taxation
Taxation

Profit tos the year

acquired principally for the purpose of ing & profit from short-t in
prices were included in the balance sheet under current assets and were carried at fair
value. In additian. fong-teim borrowings were included under long term liabilities at face
value.

HKAS 39 does n.1 permit to recognlse, derecognise and measure financial assals and
ies in accordance with this standard on a basis. The i
amounts as al 315t Necember 2004 have not been rastated.

The adoption of revised HKAS 40 has rasulted in a change in the accounting poficy of which
the changes in fair values of i are i in the profit and loss
statement. In pre sious years, a deficit in valuation was charged to the profit and loss
statemont; an increase was first credited to the profit and loss statement 1o the extent of any
valuation deficit praviously charged and thereafter was credited to the invesiment properties
revafuation reserve. As at 31st December 2004, the vatuation of investment proparties was
less than their original costs and the ravatuation daficits had aiready been charged to the
profit and loss statement In pravious years and there was no investment properties

ion reserva. Ci q1 no prior year an revenue reserve and
investment propertias ravaluation reserve is required.

The adoption of HKFRS 3, HKAS 36 and HKAS 33 has rosultod in @ change in the

aceounting policy for goedwill. Goodwill is tested annually for iImpalrment and carried at cost

less sccumutated impairment losses. The excess of acquirar's Interest in the net {air value of

acquiree’s identiliabte assels, kiabilitles, and contingent Habilitles dver tha cost of business
i is i in the profit and loss statement.

In previaus years, goodwill arising on acquisitions was Included in the balanca shoet as a
separate asse! and amortised using the straight line method over its estimated usefut ita of
nol more than twenly years, The camying amount'ot goodwill was reviewed annually and
provision was mede when, in the opinlon of the Directors, there was impalrment in value
other than temporary In nature. Where the fair values ascribad to tha net assmts ded

t0:
Shareholders of the
Company
Minarity interests

Earnings per share
(HK cants)
Basic
Diluted

)

Non-cutrent nssets

fnvesiment propertie:

Leasehold tand and land use

rights.

Jointly controlled entitles

the purchase , such waere In the profi and loss
statament In the year of acquisition or over the welghted average useful life of those non-
monetary assats acquired. As a result of this change, the Group has adopted the transitional
provision lo write off tha negalive goodwill of HK$136,000 against the opening ravenue
tecarva As At 1ot danuary 2005 wheseas the comoarative amounts as at 31s1 December”

Avallable-for-sale financial

assets

HKAS 16,
As 37 and
previously HK(IFRIC)-
reported HKAS 1 HKAS 17 HKAS 40 Int 1 Resteted
HK$'000 HK$'000 - HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
1,299,143 ’ 1,299,143
(1.248,459) 303 3,819 (1,244,337)
50,684 54,806
21,355 21,355
27,218 22,230 49,448
.(54,376) (54.376)
{15,084) (15,084)
29,797 56,149
{3.864) (3.930) {7.794)
14,622 {756) 13,866
3N (810) 2,561
43,926 64,782
{3,861) 1,566 {2.295)
40,065 — - 303 22,230 [§AR}} 62,487
33,423 _ 303 22,230 {70} 55,886
5642 — - — “n 6,601
40,065 - 303 22.230 [RARH] 62,487
2.6 - - 1.8 — 4.4
2.6 — — 1.7 — 43
Lonsolidated balance shest
' HKAS 16, 37
As and
previousty HKAS  HKAS 17,  HK(IFRiC)-
reported 32, 3% 40 Int 1 Restated
HK$000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
787,028 (320,145) 466,883
3 — 65,500 65,500
- 254,645 254,645
382,136 (133,893) 248,243
18.650 18,650
— 152,375 152,375
272,834 (152,375) 136,043 ' 256,508

Othor nan-cutrent asseta

4 acn oao

4 AES BOL

[RU—




2005 2004
Note HKS$'000 HK$'000
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 1,224,505 466,883
Investment properties 63,000 65,500
Leasehold tand and land use rights 1,638,620 254,645
Intangible assets 16,494,369 —
Jointly controlled entities 279,432 248,243
Associated companies 21,346 18,650
Available-tor-sale financial assets . 35,483 152,375
Other non-current assets 479,019 256,508
20,235,774 1,462,804
Current assets
Inventories 93,175
Debtors and prepayments 9 681,497
Tax recoverable 1,938
Other investments 4.217
Cash and bank balances 170,952
951,779
Total assets 26,387,921 2,414,583
EQUITY
Share capital 329,058 129,648
Raserves 14,603,396 1,295,616
Shareholders’ funds 14,932,454 1,425,264
Minority interests 491,910 39.025
Total equity 15,424,364 1,464,289
LIABILITIES
Non-current Habilities
Borrowings 4,643,355 311,580
Deferred taxation liabilities 1,778,531 13,884
Zmou_Em moous — 136
Prot 144,360 180,873
6,566,246 _ 506,473
Current labllities
Creditors and accruals 10 1,452,047 432,425
Current portion of borrowings - 2,943,806 10,000
Taxation payable Py 1,458 1,396

. 443,821
Total liabillties ¢ 10,963,557 950,294
Total equity and liabilities 26,387,921 2,414,583

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.

Bazsls of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance wi
Standards ("HKFRS") issued by the Hong Kong __,_m:::c o. Cert
Historical cost convention as modified by the
tinancial assets, derivativa financlal i
values.

Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Public Accountants under :E

which are carriad at fair

and o_:!

Changes In Accounting vo:o_a-

The accounting policies. :mg in the p of the financial s with those
used in the financial statements for the year ended 315t December 2004 cxncv. that the Group has
changed cenain of its accounting pollcies atter the adoption of .:o following new and revised Hong
Kong Financial Hong Kong {"HKAS") and
interpretations Aoo__m.u?n_«. the “new HKFRSs™), which are effective for accounting periods
commencing on or after 1st January 2005 and relavant to the operations of the Group:

HKAS 1 Presentation of Financlal Statements

HKAS 2 Inventories

HKAS 7 Cash Flow Statements

HKAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes In Accounting Estimates and Errors
HKAS 10 Events aiter the Balance Sheet Date

HKAS 16 Praperty, Plant and Equipment

HKAS 17 Leases

HKAS 21 The Eifacts of Changes in Foreign mxn:naom Im.om
HKAS 23 Borrowing Cosls

HKAS 24 Related Party Disclosures

HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

HKAS 28 tnvestments in Assoclates

HKAS 31 Interests in Joint <u:.=Sm

HKAS 32 Financial and

HKAS 33 Earnings per Share

HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets *
HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabllities and Contingent Assets
HKAS 38 Intanglble Assets

HKAS 38 Flnancial and

accounting policy of provision for anvironmental restoration and its retated assot. Any

I ; tnventories R 93,175 93,475
changes in the measurement of provision for environmemal restoration @re added to or ' Débtors and prepayments 547,604 133,893 681,497
deducted from its relatod assots. The perlodic unwinding of the discounts of the provision is Tax recoverable 1,938 1,938
recognised in the profit and loss statement as a finance cost as it incurs. Other Investments 4217 4217
In previous years, cast of the asset related 1o the provision for envirenmental restaration was Cash and bank belances _._ 170852 170,952
not adjusted by the changes in the provision.
N 817,886 951,779
{6) The adoption of HKFRS 2 has resulted In a change in the accounting policy for share-based
paymants. The tair value of the amployse services received In exchange for the grant of the
share optlons is recognised as an expense in the profit and foss statement. Total asseta 2.278.534 = = 136,049 2,414,563
tn previous years, the grant of share options to employees was not recognised as an Equity
expense in the profit and loss statement. Tha Group has applled the transiticnal provision, Share capital 129,648 129,648
As all the outstanding share options at 315t December 2004 had vested on or belore 1st Other reservas 587,049 (27,363) 559,686
January 2005, & prior year adjustment is not required, Revenue reserve 72883 27383 {20,269y ___ 735,930
All changes in the accounting poficies require retrospective application, except HKAS 39 and HKFRS Share .
Y o : N eholders’ funds 1,445,533 1,425,264
2 for which transitional provisions are applied. As a result, the 2004 comparative figures have also Minority interests 154,010 (103,234) (11.651) 49.025
changes in accounting policies are summarlsed in notes (a) and (b) below.
Total equity 1,599,543 1,464,289
(2)  impact to 2005 financial statements .
The following tables 6ot out the increase/(dectease) of the refevant headings in the  Non-current Hlabilities
profit and loss and balance sheet for the financial year ended 31st - Boirowings 311,580 311,580
Decembar 2005 following the adoption of new HKFRSs: Deferred taxation liabilities 13,884 13.884
Negative goodwi 136 136
[0} C profit and loss Provisions — 180,873 180,673
HKAS 16, 37
zxA_m:.__mn HKAS 32, 325,600 506,473
Current labltitles
HKAS 1 .39 HKAS 40 HKF A A
oo A L S SN, o St otk S A1 K S L Creditors and acoruals 341,995 103,334 (12904) 432,425
Borrowings 10,000 10,000
Cost of sales (3.840) (3,840) Tax payable 1,39 1,396
Excess of lair vahie of net
assets acquirad over
cast of aoquisition of 353391 4821
subsidiaries 3,039,019 3,039,019 :
Other aperating income 10,012 10,012 Total liabilities 678,991 950,294
Administrs axpenses 37,561 37,561
Othor operating expanses 2500 2500 Total equity and iabllities 2,278,534 — — 136,049 _ 2,414,583
Operating profit 3,012,810
Finance costs 1,650 87 2,027
Share of profits less 3 Segment Information
lossas of
Jointly controlled The Group is principally engaged 5 .:m ouo.m:o: in casino games of chance or games of other
entities {845) (645} sale-and di materials. in with the internal
Associated . financial reporting and operating mﬂz_,_am of the Group, the primary segment reporting is by
companies (721) R business segments and the secondary segment teporting is by geographical segments.
Profit before taxation 3.009,407 Segment assets consi ::.i_ of lant Eﬁ i
Taxation {1.386) 1,366} _uw..m nh._o. tand use i M._o%uw“«nu
! . prepayments, and mainly axn_.am
Profit for the year = 2,190 9,625 {2,500} _ (37,561) 3,039,018 3,010,773 cash and bank balances. Segment liabilities comprise mainly creditors, woo:.m_m and provisions.
There are no sates of trading transaction between tha business segments.
Attribuntable to:
Shareholders of the A summary of the businass segments for the year anded 315t December 2005 is set out as follows:
Gompany - 1,991 8,625  (2500) (37.561) 3,039.019 3,009,974
Minority intarests — 799 - — — — 799 Gaming and Construction
Totel
— 2,190 9,625 {2.500) _ (37,561} 3.039.01% 3.010,773 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS$000 HKS'000
Earnings per shara Turnover 66,213 +1,225,714 - 1,201,927
{HK cents) Other revenuas 2,095 13,721 36,213 52.029
wﬁs — 0.1 w.n AN.: .7 140.4 139.
iuted — 0.1 . X 1. 138.8 1375
) {.7) Operating profit 2,624,750 3.663 (38,343} 2,590,090
{ii) Consolidated batance sheet Finance costs (116,423)
Share of profits less losses of
HKAS ;rﬂ Jointly controlled entities - (77.975) — (72.975)
HK(IFRIC) HKAS 32, Associated companles — 2,696 - 2,696
HKAS 17 HKFRS 3 Int 1 39 HKFRS 2 Tatal .
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 Profit bafore taxation 2,399,388
Taxation {1.683)
zc.wo::.e:_ -S.-S : 638.620)
operty, plant and equipment 1,638,620) N
Leasanoid land aod land use ¢ ) Profit for the yoar 2,396,705
rights 1,628,620 1,638,620 =
Jointly controlled entities 190,268) 190,266] .
ol (190268) ¢ ) Caphal axpensiture 115.076,899) 73,297 —  {19,150,236)
assets (3.871) . (3.871) {765) (76,857Y - (77.622)
Other non-current assats 120,930 - 120.930 (418,844) {39.602) — (458,446)
Current asset: Excess of (air value of net assets
rrent assets acquired over cost of
w_..ws: and prepayments _ﬁ.%w acquisition of subsidiaries 3,039,019 — — 3,039,019
er ! of property, plant and
- _ equipment — (13,070) — (13,070)
Total assets - 120,930 8,141 — 127,071 of debtora and other
receivables - {28,500} - {28,500)
mn_ﬁ«_ a.ery) 27,561 Impalrment of available-for- ww_a
er reservas . ! 33,890 fi al assets - —
Rovenus reserve 3,039,155 10,398 (37.561)  2,993.115 nanck {1509 (1,509
Minority interests (94,288) 105,140
—Lm49 As at 315t December 2005 .
Total equity 2,921,665 Segment assets 18,808,799 1,842,757 5,435,587° 26,087,143
Jointly controtied antities . - 279,432 - 279,432
Non-current lisbititios @12) o12) Assoclated companies . - 21,346 —_ 21,346
3,039,155) 3,039,155
¢ 144360 oz Total assets 26,207,921
—_—
Current lisbliltles . g
Cresitors and nocruals ¥ 6300 94288 100,660 Segment Hiabilities 900,262 570823 9492372 _ 10,963,557
Currant portion of borrowings . 5) 9
Total llabillties (2,794,584)
Since tha Group acqulred nn_,EQ. which carries out the gaming and entertainment business, in July
Total equity and liabl — — 120,030 6,141 - 127,01 2005, there was only ong business segment in 2004. Accordingly, the business segment for 2004 Is

nat prosented.




WEDNESDAY, APRIL 12, 2006

SOUTH CHINA MORNING POST

CLASSIFIED NOTICES Page 15

+ A summary of the geographical segments is set out as follows:

The aging analysis of the Group’s trade creditors based on the dates of tho invoices Is as follows:

Page 2
Construction Materials Division

The businesses of the construction materials division continued 3 expand into the Mainland
during the year. This division now has established operations in most of the Sm_o- cities
across the Mainfand.

The business environment of the division's Io:m Kong construction materials operation
continues to improve although sales volume remains at a low level owing to the reduced
number of no:m::n:o: _..:o_mn.m _mxms place during the year. On the other hand, the persistent

in the N have slightly aftected the sales growth in our

As a result, turnover far the year could only be maintained a similar leve!
as that of last year. The division has incurred a loss this year as compared to a profit [ast year.
The net loss for the year included _Bom_azm:nm of assets and noous___ In addition, the
adoption of new accounting standards has given rise to a special prior year gain on property
revaluation being included in the profit and loss account of 2004. Had these non-recurring
items been excluded, tha net profit for the year was in fact similar to that of last year.

C it ials Bt in Hong Kong and Macau

The economy of Hong Kong i to enjoy a for growth during the year.
Consumer spending increased and asset prices were creeping up gradually. However the
suspension of reqular land auctions and the halt of mega devetopment projects in both Wast
Kowloon and East Kowloon as well as some other sizeable infrastructure projects cuntaited
the amount of construction works in the territories, thus affecting the demand for construction
materials a:::n the year. it is envisaged that, once these ?o_mn.w are released together with
the improving property development market led by the growth in economy, the demand for
construction materials will restore to its normal level. Leveraged on such a business
environment, this division through business ion has further its cor
materials busi in Hong Kong.

Capita) - 2005 2004
Turnover oxpenditure Total asseta HK$'000 HK$'000
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
Within one month 275,848 80,834
YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2005 . Two to threae months 48,207 62,659
Hong Kong 493,504 11,232 1,078,696 Four to six months 41,135 26,502
Macay 126,938 19,112,855 24,094,083 Over six months 57,477 23,864
Maintang China 671,487 26,149 1,215,142
423,667 193,859
1,291,927 19,150,236 26,387,921
11, [
YEAR ENDED 31ST DECEMBER 2004 Acquisition of Galaxy
Hong Ko 461,800 10,303 1,156,580
Maintand China 837.343 62,736 1,256,003 HK$'000
1,299,143 73,039 2,414,583 Purchase consideration
Issue of new shares 14,724,158
Turnover and Other Revenues Issue of fixed rate notes 2,544,240
Cash N 1,136,800
2005 2004
— MKS'000 HK$'000 ) ) ) 18,405,198
Sales of construction materials 1,225,714 1,299,143 Shortlall in market price of shares issued ___{4785.351)
Revenues from gaming operations {note a) 66,213 —
Fair value of conslderation 13,619,847
1,291,927 1,299,143 Direct costs relating to the acquisition 18,743
) Tatal acquisition cost 13,638,590
Other revenues 127721 13,138 Fair value of net assefs acquired 16,677,609
Interest income ’
Loan to a felfow subsi — 579 Excess ol fair value of net assets acquired aver cost of acquisition of subsidiaries 3,039,019
Loans ta jointly no::o__mn entities 2,532 981 N ) T
Other raceivable — 3,940 On 22nd July 2005, the Group completed the acquisition of Gataxy with part of the consideration
Bank deposits 20,257 1,396 being settled by the allotment and issue of 1.840,519,798 new shares of HK$0.10 each by the
Deferred receivable 703 1,321 Company a1 an issue price of HK$8.00 each. HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations™ requires the fair
Administrative foe 2,085 - value af the share consideration for accounting purposes to be determined at the date thal control
Dividand incomae fram unlisted il 12,721 — over the net Wmmm_m attributable to the acquisition becomes effective. At the completion date of the
the rket price of the shares of the Company was HK$5.40. Accordingly, the fair
52,029 21356 value of the consideration shares tor this purpose was HK$9,936,807,000.
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
1,343,956 1,320,498 -
A of Gaming and Enter
a) The Group currently operates its lirst city club casino, Waldo Casino, for which the Grosp  On 22nd July 2005, the acquisition (“Acquisition”}) of 88.1% of the voting shares carrying

has entered into aq {the "Waldo Aa
Providers™} for  term equal 10 the life of the

"} with centain parties (the "Service

Macau Special Administrative Region up to June 2022.

with the of

Under the Waldo Agreements, the Service Providers undertake for the provision of a steady

flow of customers to the Waldo Casino and for procuring and or i

to the

87.9% of the economic interest in Galavy by Canton Traasure Group Lid| 2 wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, uc.w:w:. to an acquisition agreement dated 14th March 2005 as
dated st April 2005 and 31st May 2005, was
t As the Acquisition was d in July 2005, the results of Galaxy m:Q _.m

Waldo Casino, The Service Providerss also agree 1o indemnify the Group against

substantially a!l risks acising under the lease wigh
payments by Gataxy of certain ova_,:n and a

‘aldo Hotel Limited; and to guarantee
inistrative expenses.

In addition, the

Service Providers have guaranteed a minimum return to the Group regardtess of the
operating results of the gaming activilies of the Waldo Casino. Revenues attributable to the
Group are determined by reference to various rates on the net gaming wins. After the special
gaming tax and tunds payment to the Government, the remaining net gaming wins and
revenues from gaming operations less all the relevant operating and adminisirative

expenses of Waldo Casino belong to the Service Providers.

The revenues and expenses related to the gaming oporations o Waldo Casino In 2005 since

the of Galaxy, are as lollows:

Nat gaming wins
Tips received and other income
Interest income

Operating expenses
wuan_m_ gaming tax and funds to the Government
and paid to
. Do_.kwn_m:o: and amortisation
Staff costs
Operating lease rental
Other operating and administrative expenses

Contribution from gaming operations
Net entitlements of tha Servica Providers

Revenues from gaming operations attributable to the Group
QOperating Profit

2005
HK$ 000
Operating profit Is atated attar crediting:
Gain on disposat of available-for-sale financial assets 36,554
Change in fair value of derivative finandat instrument 2,074
Change [n tair value of listed investments 8,522
Changa in fair value of Investmaent propertles —_
Amortisation of negative goodwill —
—
and atter charging:
Amottisation
Quarry site development 1,005
Qverburden removal costs 18,182
* Gaming licence 416,762

HK$'000

(626,882)
(611,322)
(3.044)
(108,304)
(12,500)
(17.:226)

(1.381,378)

207,028

{140.,813)
£6,213

idiaries for the period from the date of to 31st Di 2005 were incl
in the annual results of the Group for the year ended 31st December 2005.

The purchase price was HK$18.405,198,023, which was satisfied (i) as to about 80% by the
altotment and issue of 1,840,519,798 new shares of the Company to the vendors credited as
fully paid at HK$8 each and (i} as to about 20% by the issue to the vendors of
HK$2,544,239,603 principal amount of unsecured fixed rate notes and the payment in cash
to the vendors of HK$1,136,800,000. Such cash payment was funded by the cash proceeds of
approximately HK$1,136,800,000 raised from a top-up placement announced on 21st April
2005 in which 146,000,000 new shares of the Company wera placed to independent investors
at HK$8 per share.

The Acquisi 1 a connected and a very for the
Company under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited and was duly approved by the independent shareholders of the Company
at the extraordinary general meeting duly convened.and held on 19th July 2005.

Further details of the Acquisition were included in the circular of the Company dated 30th
June 2005 issusd to the shareholders.

Galaxy holds one of the only three-gaming concessions awarded by the Macau government to
operate casinos in Macau. With Galaxy already operating the Waldo Casino and the
development of its StarWorld Holel and Casino, Cotai Mega Resort, and other new city club
casinos all underway, Galaxy is well positioned to take ‘advantage of the fast growing Macau
gaming and tourism markel. The Company, which is interested in 97.9% af the economic
interest in Galaxy, is expected to benefit from Macau's growing tourism, hospitality and
gaming industry.

Revlew of Operation

Turnover and profit attributable to shareholders for the year ended 31st December 2005 was
HK$1,292 million and HK$2,395 mi
respactively for the year ended 31st Dmn@:&m- 2004. Tha Group’s turnover was sfightly lower
than that of last year but ths profit attril from last
yoar. The profit attributable to shareholders S- the year ended 31st December 2005 included
an excess of fair value of net assets acquired over cost of acquisition of subsidiaries of
HK$3,039 milllon which arose from the Acquisition in July, 2005, net of pre-opening expenses
of HK$14 million. Tha Board of Directors has resolved not to pay any final dividend for the
year ended 31st December 2005.

Set out below is the segment dnalysis of the Group’s aperating result for the ?E 2005:

. Gaming and Construction

enter Corp Total
HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M

Company and subsidiaries R
Operating profiv(toss}) 2,625 3 (38) 2,590
Non-racurring items (3,025) (9} 20 (3.014)
Dapraciation and amortisation 419 117 o 536

n as compared to HK$1,299 million and HK$56 million -

The acquisition not only provides this division with a broader customer base and good synergy
eftact, but also enables us to be wall uom:_o:ma to capture a larger market share from the
upturn of construction materials market in the years ahead.

The rehabilitation work of KWP Quarry Co., Limited at Anderson Road Quarry in which we
have a 63.5% interest continues to progress in accordance with the planned schedule.

In Macau, drivan by the rapid growth of tourism, hospitality and gaming industry,

construction works in the area have been extremely active during the year. The prevailing
economic growth and the corresponding local government policy to turther develop the city
will generate a substantial and continuous demand for quality construction materials for the
construction works in the area. Seizing such a valuable opportunity, we have established
operations in the area to supply quality construction material products to the market. The
operations have good profit contribution during the year. We will further expand its business in
Macau to cope with the increasing demand for quality construction materials in the area.

Ot

Constructions B8

in the

The persistent macroeconomic measures upheld by the Central Government have
successfully rectified the rampant economic growth experienced in prior years. Raw
materials prices become much more stabilized during the year. Although the
macroeconomic measures have some effects in lowering the construction activities in the
Mainland, it has laid down a solid foundation for a sustainabla growth in the future, in which,
we will benefit in the tong term.

>=zo:w: the sales volume and nSE oo:.:c::o: of our Mainland operations, in particular our
dy d concrete op are lower than that of last year, the stabilised
raw materials costs have m:mgwa us to Bm_:_m_: a similar profit margin as that of last year.

Our strategy of investing in high eniry barrier products has marked a success this year. Qur
joint venture projects with Beijing Shougang Group, Yunnan Kunming Steel Group, Anhui
Magang Group and Guangdong Shaogang Group for manufacture and sale of slag have all
Mmade good profit contribution to us. The slag products supplied through these jeint ventures
are well received in the local markets. In view of increasing demand tor slag, we will consider
turther expansion of production tacilities in meeting those demand. We will also continue to
davelop and promote slag products to new markets.

The initial phase of our joint venture with Kunming Steel Group in Kunming, Yunnan for the
manufacture and sale of cement has begun making profit contribution to us during the yaar.
The local market demand for cement is high and it is ged that with the

of additional production facilities currently under construction, the joint venture will provide us
with good profit contribution in the tuture.

Owing to a sluggish demand for cement in the Guangzhou market qmmr_::u trom the

. macroeconomic measures, the performance of our cement joint venture in Guangzhou for the

year was less satisfactory. Active measures have been undertaken to improve the cost
efficiency and enhance our competitiveness in the market.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The financial position of the Group has remained strong during the year. The shareholders’
tunds at 31st December 2005 was HK$14,932 million, an increase of approximately 948%
over that at 31st December 2004 of HK$1,425 miltion (as restated) and the Group's total
assets employed alsa increased to HK$26,388 million as compared to HK$2,415 million {as
restated) at 31st December 2004.

In April, 2005, the Company, through & top-up placement of shares, has .mw:ma 146 million
new shares at HK$8 per share and has g cash p of HK$1,137
million. Such cash proceeds were applied to fund the >nn:_m=.o= in .E_< 2005.

The Group continues to maintain a strong cash position. As at 31st December 2005, total
cash and bank batances were HK$5,068 million as compared to HK$171 million as at 31st
DBecember 2004,

As at 3tst December 2005, the Group's total indebtedness was HK$7,587 million as
compared to HK$322 million as at 31st December 2004. The total indebtedness of the Group
mainly comprises bank loans, fixed rate notes, guarantged notes and other obligations which
mS _Eam? denominated in Hong Kong Dollars and United States Doltars. The Group's

are to ensure a smooth repayment moson:_w to maturity.




i
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Leasehold tand and land use right (note a) . '5.385 6.305

Oepreciation 77,622 70.825
tmpairment of available-for-sale financlal assets 1,505 2.880
Impairment of property, plant and equipment 13,070 —
Impairment of debtors and ather receivables 28,500 —
Change in faif value of invesiment properties 2,500 -
Cast of inventories sold 1,062,157 1.141.258
{a} Amortisation of leasehold land and fand use rights is stated after amount capitalised in
assets under construction of HK$52,636,000 (2004 : nil}.
Texation

2005 2004
HK$'000 HKS$'000

Current taxation
Hong xcam profits tax 1,043 78
Mainfand China profits tax - 634 2217

1,683 2,285

Hong Kong prolits tax has been pravided at the rate of 17.5% (2004: 17.5%) on the estimated
assessahle profits for the year. Taxation assassable on profits generated outside Hong Kong has
been provided at the rates of taxation prevaling in the countries in which thase profils arose.

Share of taxation of and ointly entities for the yeas ended 31st
December 2005 are HK$721,000 (2004: HK$810,000) and HK$645.000 (2004: HK$758,000)}
respectivaly and are included In the profit and loss statement as share of prolits less losses of

and joinity
Dividends
2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000
Interim {2004 : scrlp with a cash option of 1 cent per share) - 12,833
Final (2004: 1 cent per share) — 12,972

- 25,805

The Board of Directors has resolved not to recommend any final dividend for the year ended 315t
December 2005 (2004: 1 cent par share).

Earnings Per Share
The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share for tha year is based on the following:

2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000
Profit for caicutation of basic and diluted earnings per share 2,395,269 55,886

Number of shares

2005 2004
Sm.o.:ma average number of shares for nw_n:_m__bo basic
earnings per shara 2,164,200,891  1,276,188,991
Etfact of dilutive potential ordinary shares: -4
Shars options 25,507,219 23,183,947

Weighted average number & shares for calculating diluted
earnings per share

2,189,716,11¢ _ 1,299,372,938

Debtors and Prepayments

2008 2004

HK$'000 HK$'000

Trade debtors, net of provision 497,406 455,380
Amounts due from jointly controlled entities 190,266 133,893
Other receivables, net of pro 150,425 32,973
Prepayments. 88,331 59,251
926,428 681,497

The Group has established credit policies, which toflow local industry standard. The Group narmally
aliows an approved credit period Bé_i from 30 to 60 days for customers in Mong Kang and 120 10
180 days tor customers in Malnland China. These are subject to periodic review by management.

Tha aging analysis of the Group's trade debtors based on the dales of the invoices and nat of
provision for bad and doubiful debts is as tollows:

2004
HK$000
Within one month 124,282
Two to three months 153,943
Four to six months. 88,658
Over six months. 88.497
455,380

Creditors and Accruata
2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$'000
Trada creditors 423,667 193,859
Qther creditors 349,778 55,773
Chips Issued 345.924 =
Amounts due to jolntly controlled entities 14,397 —_
Loan from minority interests 94,2680 103.234
216,611 74174
5,322 5,285
1,452,047 432,425

Jointty controlled entities and

associates
Share ot profits less losses

before tax - (74) - (74)
Non-recurring items — 108 - 109

- 35 — 35

Earnings before non-recurring

items, depreciation and

amortisation and tax 19 146 (18) 147

Gaming and Entertainment Division
Overview

Galaxy operates in one of the fastest- naoi:_n 093:6 markets in the world. In 2005, this
division had its first full year of casino oumam._cs at its first city club omm_:owimao Casino:
Throughout the year, the casino to prosper and a steady level
of turnover. Revenue from gaming operation for the year was HK$163 million as compared to
HK$124 million in the previous year which had six months of gaming operation. After

ion of operation, , and other exp in relation to the development of
the StarWorld, the Cotai Mega mmmo: and two new cCity o.:vm casinos, this division recorded
an EBITDA, excludes non-recurring items, of HK$19 n for the year.

2005 marked another year of double digit growth for the Macau gaming markét with the total
gaming revenue soared to HK$43 billion. The net gaming wins at the Waldo Casino reached
HK$3.8 billion for the full year of 2005 which represented a market share of 9% of the total
market with only 43 VIP tables and 20 mass gaming tables and 74 slots machines.

StarWorld

StarWorld, the first flagship entertainment of Galaxy, is located at the
Avenida da Amizade in the downtown Macau gaming hub. It is a 34-storay premium hotel with
two “Sky Suites™ of 6,000 square feet with spectacular view of downtown Macau. The hotel is
designed by Rocco Yim, Praject Architect for Two International Finance Centre in Hong Kon
and the interior is igH by LRF Desig Ltd. The double-layer exterior glass wall wi
deliver intriguing and marvelous effects from the resulting superimposed images. StarWorld
will be the tallest hotel and a tandmark in Macau upon complation.

The other facilities of StarWorld will include delightful restaurants serving Asian and Chinese
cuisines, swimming pool in the air, spa and well-equipped health club, multimedia
entertainment center and music lounge.

Construction of StarWorld, the first Galaxy-built, owned and operated casino hotel resort, is
currently on schedule. The tower block was topped out in January 2006 and the casino is
P to ion in August 2006.

On the operation side, an ir team with significant gaming
and hospitality industry mxvm:m:na is io..x.:u on the omm_so layout designs to Smx_a_ue the
h the right mix of table games, electronic and room The
fatest in casino and hotel systems, surveil and security systems, card and
chip protection systems will be deployed in its operations. In addition, preparation is under
way o recruit and train over 2,000 new employees into the industry.

StarWorld, with 290 gamning tables, 300 electronic machines and 500 hotel rooms,
contribute 10 the success of the Group.

Cotal Mega hmmc:

At the same __Bm work is well under way to develop and build the Ex::o:m Cotai Zmnm

1OIYUI LTS MU U FUr i W A I

assets acquisitions.
Gearing Ratio

The gearing ratio, defined as the -m:c o. .c_m_ loans outstanding less cash balances to total
assets ludes cash at a y level of 12% at 31st
December 2005 as compared to up\e mm at 31st December 2004,

Treasury Policy

The Group continues to adopt a conservative treasury policy with all bank deposits in either
Hong Kong Doltars, United States Dollars or in the local currencies of the operating
mcum_n_m:mm xmmu_:n a minimum exposure to 385: exchange risks. All of the Group's

considered appropriate, to hedge against foreign exchange exposure. The Group has not
engaged in the use of other derivative products, which are considered not necessary for the
Group's treasury management activities.

Charges on Group Assets

Leasehold land with net book values of HK$221 million (2004: HK$227 million} and bank
deposits of HK$259 million (2004: nil) have been pledged to secure banking: fa

Contingent Liabilities

The Company has executed guarantees in tavour of banks in respect of facilities granted to
subsidiaries amounting to HK$534 million {2004: HK$290 million). At 31st December 2005,
the tacilities utifised amounted to HK$124 ion (2004 : HK$105 million).

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

At 31st December 2005, the Group, oxn_cn_:u d and jointly c:
entities, employed m_‘ocaa 3,944 employees in Io:u Kong, Macau and Mainland o:_zm
Employee costs, Directors' amounted to HK$232 million.

The Group recrults and promotes individuals based on thair competencies, merit and
development potential and ensures p are The Group has
implemented a share option scheme for .S_.: 1991 following app i by its
shareholders for the purpose of providing compe!
management tafents. Likewise in Macau and Mainland China, employees’ remuneration is
commensurate with market levels with emphasis on provision of training and developmént
opportunities.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year ended 31st December
2005. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries have purchased or sold any of the
Company's shares during the year ended 31st December 2005.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company has reviewed the resulis for the year ended 31st
December 2005. The figures in this preliminary announcement of the results of the Group for
5m year ended 31st December 2005 have been agreed by the Company's auditors,
oopers, to the set out in the Group’s consolidated financial
for the <mm-. Pri ~oopers' works, in this respect, did not constitute an
in with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing, Hong Kong
on Review E or Hong Kong Standards on Assurance Engagements

issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The oo_.:_vm:« has ooav_.mq ith the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (“Code

Resort. This resort provide a one-stop dastination for nm:::n. enter

and cuisine and feature in excess of 25,000m? of gaming space with over 450 gaming
tables and 1,000 electronic machines. in the initial stage of the development 1,500 hotel
rooms have been planned. Pilings have started on the site and design layouts are being
refined.

Cotai Mega Resort is well d in the newly ped Cotai district with

") set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stack Exchange of Hong Kong Uimited (“Listing Rules”), except Code provisions A.4.2 and
E.1.2. The Board considers that the spirit of Code u8<_m_o: A.4.2 has been upheld, given that
the other

transportation, near the Sai Wan Bridge connecting to Macau town centre, Lotus Bridge to
Henquin and Macau Interational Airport to the rest of the world. It will be Galaxy's flagship
gaming'and resort centre in Macau.

The other facilities of Cotai Mega Resort include huge shopping malls, health club and spa,
music lounges, children's amusement arcade, theater and a wide variety of food and
beverage services.
Cotai Maega Resort is
Galaxy City Clubs

In addition to our owned properties at StarWorld and Cotai Mega Resort, we have added two
new city club casinos: the Rio Casino and the Grand Waldo Casina.

Rio Casino, with 75 gaming tables and 150 electronic machines on the main gaming floor and
15 VIP gaming tables in luxurious VIP rooms on the top tloar of the Rio hotal has commenced
oparation in March 2006.

Grand Waldo Casino, with 100 gaming tables and 350 electronic machines on the main
gaming floor and 46 VIP gaming tables in 16 VIP rooms is to
in April 20086.

Bond issus

in December 2005, we successfully raised US$600 ion comprising of US$350
9.875% guaranteed senior notes maturing on 15th December 2012 and US$250 miltion
guaranteed senior floating rate notes, at six month LIBOR plus 5%, maturing on 15th
December 2010.

Wae have rapaid the loan of HK$242 miltion to Hang Seng Bank from the bond proceeds.

With the bond issue and the projected cash flows from operations of our properties:
m.w-iczu Waido, Rio and Grand Waldo, we have sufficient tunds to complete the

getod to poration in 2008.

1 and of StarWorld and the Cotai Mega Resort.

and pi the widespread geographical business of the Group is an asset of

tha 0a3vw:< The Chairman did not attend the annual general meseting of the Company on

28th Aprit 2005 as he had other engagement.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

.:;m 0030»3 hassetupa mmi__:mE:Q: Committes on 27th ._mzcmé 2006 with written terms
in with the req of Code p B.1.1toB.15.

PUBLICATION OF FURTHER INFORMATION

The Annual mwno: 2005 of the Company containing all informatlon required by the Listing

m:_ems_oo o:.zo1 of the Company and The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited in due course. .

DIRECTORS

At the date of this announcement, the executive directors are Dr. Lui Che Woo, Mr. Francis

Lui Yiu Tung, Mr. Chan Kai Nang, Mr. Joseph Chee Ying Keung, Mr, William Lo Chi Chung
and Ms. Paddy Tang Lui Wai Yu; the non-executive director is Mr. Moses Cheng Mo Chi; and
the independent non-executive directors are Dr. Charles 0:@::@ Wai Bun, Mr. James Ross
Ancell and Dr. William Yip Shue Lam.

By Order of the Board
Kitty Chan Lai Kit
Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 11th April 2006

Registered Office:

Room 1606, 16th Floor, Hutchison House
10 Harcourt Road

Central, Hong Kong

Weobsite: www galaxyentertainment.com
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